

EFFECTIVE DATE: August 1, 2022

REV. NO.: 4.2

PAGE: 1 of 10

#### **GLOSSARY**

#### (adapted from the 2020 PHREB SOP Workbook)

Active Files – are documents pertaining to protocols which are currently being assessed, managed or monitored by the REC.

Active Study – is an ongoing study, implementation of which is within the period covered by ethics clearance.

Adjournment – Formal closure of the meeting. Motion for adjournment and record of the time are minuted.

Administrative Documents/File – documents that pertain to the operations of the REC and are not directly related to a study or protocol. Examples include the SOPs, Membership files, Agenda and minutes files, administrative issuances.

Administrative Issuance - official communications or announcements from institutional authorities

After-approval reports — are reports, e.g. progress report, protocol deviation/violation report, amendment, early termination report, final report, application for continuing review, required by the REC for submission by the researcher/investigator after the study has been approved for implementation.

Agenda - the list of topics or items to be taken up in a meeting arranged in a sequential manner. It is an outline of the meeting procedure and starts with a "Call to Order".

Alternate Members – individuals who possess the qualifications of specified regular members. They are called to attend a meeting and substitute for regular members to comply with the quorum requirement when the latter cannot attend the meeting.

Amendment – a change in or revision of the protocol made after it has been approved.

Anonymization – process of removing the link between the research participant and the personally identifiable data, in such a way that the research participant cannot be determined nor traced.

Appeal – a request of a researcher/investigator for a reconsideration of REC recommendation.

Appointing authority - the institutional official that has the power to designate or appoint individuals to specific offices or roles.

Archiving- is the systematic keeping of protocol files in storage after the studies have been completed with final reports accepted, or terminated or declared inactive.

Assessment Form— evaluation tool accomplished by the reviewers when appraising the protocol or the informed consent form.



EFFECTIVE DATE: August 1, 2022

REV. NO.: 4.2

PAGE: 2 of 10

#### **GLOSSARY**

Ballot – voting (indicating a choice) by writing the choice on a form for the purpose. Ballots are subsequently counted to determine how the majority of members voted for decision-making.

Benefits – summary of probable positive or favorable outcomes ranging from benefit to the community (or society), indirect gains such as education, or direct therapeutic value Business Arising from the Minutes – are matters generated from the discussions in the previous meeting that need continuing attention and require reporting.

Clarificatory Interview/meeting – is a face-to-face consultation between the REC and the researcher for the purpose of obtaining explanations or clarity regarding some research issues identified by the REC.

Clinical Auditor – an individual who systematically and independently examines trial related activities and documents at a particular period as a significant step in quality control.

Clinical Monitor- an individual who oversees the progress of a clinical trial.

Clinical Trial – a systematic study on pharmaceutical products in human subjects (including research participants and other volunteers in order to discover or verify the effects of and/or identify and adverse reactions to investigational products with the object of ascertaining their efficacy and safety.

Coding- a unique number assigned to a document. A protocol code indicates the year and order of receipt. The SOP code indicates its serial position among the other SOPs and its version number.

Collegial Decision — a course of action arrived at after a group deliberation where members were considered of equal authority such that the course of action is considered as a group action and is not ascribed to any one member.

Complaint – the act of expressing discontent or unease about certain events or arrangements in connection with a study.

Confidentiality – is the duty to refrain from freely disclosing private/ research information entrusted to an individual or organization.

Confidentiality of Documents – pertains to the recognition and awareness that certain documents that have been entrusted or submitted to the REC must not be freely shared or disclosed.

Conflict of Interest – a situation in which aims or concerns of two (primary and secondary) different interests are not compatible such that decisions may adversely affect the official/primary duties.

Conforme - an indication of acceptance of or agreement to an assignment or designation



EFFECTIVE DATE: August 1, 2022

REV. NO.: 4.2

PAGE: 3 of 10

### **GLOSSARY**

Consensus – a collective agreement; the process of arriving at a decision without voting but by generating the over-all sentiment of a group such that deliberations continue until no more strong objections are registered.

Continuing Review - is the decision of the REC to extend ethical clearance of a study beyond the initial period of effectivity based on an appreciation that the research is proceeding according to the approved protocol and there is reasonable expectation of its completion.

Controlled document – pertains to the document that have been entrusted or submitted to the REC that must not be freely shared or disclosed such that it is appropriately tagged and its distribution carefully tracked, monitored and appropriately recorded.

Database – a collection of information that is structured and organized so that this can easily be accessed, managed, interpreted, analyzed and updated.

Date of Effectivity – date when the guidelines shall be enforced.

Decision – the result of the deliberations of the REC in the review of a protocol or other submissions.

Draft Meeting Agenda – the order of business that includes the list of topics or items recommended for discussion in a meeting. This is endorsed to the REC Chair for his/her approval.

Draft Meeting Minutes – Proceedings of the meeting prepared by the Secretariat.

Drug or device – health product used for diagnosis or treatment.

Early Termination - is ending the implementation of a study before its completion. This is a decision made by the sponsor or a regulatory authority and/or recommended by the Data Safety Monitoring Board, researcher/investigator in consideration of participant safety, funding issues, protocol violations, and data integrity issues.

Exempt from Review — a decision made by the REC Chair or designated member of the committee regarding a submitted study proposal based on criteria in the NEGHHR 2017 The Research Ethics Review Process Guideline 3.1. This means that the protocol will not undergo an expedited nor a full review.

Exemption Report – a list of protocols submitted for review that were deemed not to require the conduct of either expedited or full review. This report is presented during a regular committee meeting or as required by the institutional authority.

Expedited Review — is the ethical evaluation of a research proposal and other protocol-related documents, a resubmission and after-approval submissions, conducted by only 23 members of the committee without involvement of the whole committee.



EFFECTIVE DATE: August 1, 2022

REV. NO.: 4.2

PAGE: 4 of 10

#### **GLOSSARY**

Expedited Review Reports – is an enumeration of protocols (including titles, code number, proponent, submission date, names of reviewers and decisions) that underwent expedited review presented during a regular REC meeting for information of the REC members and for record purposes.

Final Meeting Agenda - is the order of business that includes the list of topics or items approved for discussion in a meeting by the REC Members in a regular or special meeting.

Final Meeting Minutes – Proceedings of the meeting that have been approved by the REC members.

Final Reports/ Close Out Reports — is a summary of the outputs and outcomes (including documented risks and benefits) of the study upon its completion, as well as the status of all participants. The REC requires the accomplishment of the Final Report form within a reasonable period after the end of the study.

Format- general style or layout of the document

Full Review – is the ethical evaluation of a research proposal and other protocol-related documents, a resubmission and after-approval submissions, conducted by the research ethics committee en banc, in the presence of a quorum, using established technical and ethical criteria.

Honorarium- monetary payment for a specific professional service.

Inactive Study – a study whose proponent has not communicated with the REC with regard to issues pertaining to the approval or implementation of the study – within a period of time required by the REC.

Incoming Communications – are documents which are directed to and received at the REC office.

Independent consultants - individuals who are not members of the Research Ethics Committee, but whose expertise is needed in the review of a research protocol/proposal and who may be invited to attend a committee meeting but are nonvoting during the deliberation.

Initial Review – the ethical assessment of the first complete set of study documents submitted to the REC for assessment that can be expedited or full review

Initial Submission – a set of documents consisting of the full proposal and other study-related documents that is received by the REC so that ethical review can be done.

Intellectual property –refers to intangible creations of the human mind (such as inventions, literary and artistic works, designs, and symbols, names and images used in commerce, that are considered as owned by the one who thought of it. Intellectual property includes information and intellectual goods.



EFFECTIVE DATE: August 1, 2022

REV. NO.: 4.2

PAGE: 5 of 10

### **GLOSSARY**

Intellectual property right – the exclusive right given to persons over the use of the creations of his/her mind for a certain period of time.

Logbook – a real-time, chronological record of incoming protocols that includes the Date /Time of Receipt, Title of the Document, Name of the Proponent, Name and Signature of the Submitting Entity, Name and Signature of the Receiving Person and Action done.

Major Modification — is a recommended revision of significant aspects/s of the study (e.g., study objectives, recruitment of participants, exclusion/inclusion criteria, collection of data, statistical analysis, mitigation of risks, protection of vulnerability, etc.) that impact on potential risks/harms to participants and on the integrity of the research.

Majority rule- is a policy based on the principle that the decision made by the greater number should be carried/accepted.

Meeting Minutes – the official narration and record of the proceedings of the assembly of REC Members, based on the agenda.

Medical Members – are individuals with academic degrees in the medical profession and a master's in the nursing profession.

Minimal Risk – term used when the probability and magnitude of harm or discomfort anticipated in a research are not greater, in and of themselves, than those encountered in daily life or during the performance of routine physical or psychological examinations or tests.

Minor Modification - – is a recommended revision of particular aspect/s of the study or related documents that do not impact on potential risks/harms to participants and on the integrity of the research, e.g. incomplete documentation, incomplete IC elements, unsatisfactory IC format )

More than Minimal Risk - term used when the probability and magnitude of harm or discomfort anticipated in a research are greater, in and of themselves, than those encountered in daily life or during the performance of routine physical or psychological examinations or tests.

Non-affiliated Member/s – are regular members who are not in the roster of personnel or staff of the Institution. They are not employees of the institution since they do not receive regular salary or stipend from the institution.

Non-medical members- are individuals without academic degrees in the medical profession nor a master's degree in the nursing profession.

Non-Scientists – are individuals whose primary interest is not in any of the natural, physical and Social sciences and whose highest formal education is a bachelor's degree.



EFFECTIVE DATE: August 1, 2022

REV. NO.: 4.2

PAGE: 6 of 10

#### **GLOSSARY**

Operations-related Matters – are items included in the agenda that are not directly related to any protocol under review.

Outgoing Communications – are documents generated within the REC office intended for individuals or offices related to the operations of the REC.

Physical Plant Division – unit within the institution that is in charge of the maintenance and use of physical facilities.

Post-approval Reports – are accounts of the ongoing implementation of an approved study (e.g., progress report, amendment, safety report, protocol deviation/violation, early termination, final report, or application for continuing review) that are required be submitted by the researcher to the REC for monitoring purposes.

Primary Reviewers – are members of the Research Ethics Committee (usually a scientist and a non-scientist) assigned to do an in-depth evaluation of the research-related documents using technical and ethical criteria established by the committee. The nonscientist member shall focus on the review of the Informed Consent process and form and reflect on community values, culture and tradition in order to recommend acceptance, non-acceptance or improvement of the informed consent process and form. The primary reviewers shall present their findings and recommendations during the meeting for discussion.

Principal Investigator - the lead person selected by the sponsor to be primarily responsible for the implementation of a sponsor-initiated clinical drug trial

Progress Report – A systematized description of how the implementation of the study is moving forward. This is done by accomplishing the Progress Report Form ##. The frequency of submission (e.g., quarterly, semi-annually or annually) is determined by the REC based on the level of risk.

Protocol – the documentation of the study proposal that includes a presentation of the rationale and significance of the study, background and review of literature, study objectives, study design and methodology, data collection, dummy tables, plan for analysis of data, ethical consideration, and dissemination plan.

Protocol database - a collection of information about protocols that is structured and organized for easy access, management, interpretation, analysis and updating. It is usually in an electronic platform used for tracking and monitoring the implementation of a study.

Protocol Deviation – non-compliance with the approved protocol that does not increase risk nor decrease benefit to participants and does not significantly affect their rights, safety or welfare or the integrity of data. Example: missed visit, non-submission of a food diary on time.

Protocol File/Folder – is an organized compilation of all documents (physical or electronic form) related to a study.



EFFECTIVE DATE: August 1, 2022

REV. NO.: 4.2

PAGE: 7 of 10

#### **GLOSSARY**

Protocols for Full Review – Study proposals that require an en banc ethical because they entail more than minimal risks to the participants and/or that participation generates vulnerability issues.

Protocol Index – is a chronological record of the documents in the protocol file. The protocol index is in table form indicating the date of filing, the nature of the document filed, the name and signature of the person who filed and an extra column to record any movement of the document. The index is pasted inside the cover page of the protocol file/folder for easy reference and checking.

Protocol-related Documents- consist of all other documents aside from the proposal/protocol itself that are required to be submitted for review, e.g., Informed Consent Form, Survey Questionnaire, CV of proponent, advertisements, In-depth Interview Guide Questions.

Protocol Violation- non-compliance with the approved protocol that may result in an increased risk or decreased benefit to participants or significantly affect their rights, safety or welfare or the integrity of data. Example: incorrect treatment, non-compliance with inclusion/exclusion criteria.

Provisional Meeting Agenda – is the order of business that includes the list of topics or items approved for discussion in a meeting by the REC Chair.

Provisional Meeting Minutes – Proceedings of the meeting that have been noted or approved by Presiding officer.

Query – the act of asking for information or clarification about a study.

Quorum – the minimum number (i.e., majority of the members) and type of members of the REC that are required to be present in any meeting for the proceedings to be considered valid. International and national guidelines require the presence of at least 5 regular members including the non-affiliated and the non-scientist members.

Real-time Recording – the process of documenting the minutes of the meeting as the meeting proceeds simultaneously.

REC Operations- the overall activities of the REC that reflect performance of its functions and responsibilities.

Regular Meeting – a periodically scheduled assembly of the REC.

Regular Members – are members constituting the research to ethics committee, who receive official appointments from the institutional authority with specific terms and responsibilities including review of research proposals and attendance of meetings.

Regulatory Authorities – refer to government agencies or institutions that have oversight or control over the conduct of research, e.g., Department of Health, Food and Drug Administration, Research Institutions



EFFECTIVE DATE: August 1, 2022

REV. NO.: 4.2

PAGE: 8 of 10

### **GLOSSARY**

Reportable Negative Events (RNE) - are occurrences in the study site that indicate risks or actual harms to participants and to members of the research team. Examples are brewing hostilities in the research community, natural calamities, unleashed dogs, threats of harassment, etc.,

Researcher- is the individual primarily responsible for the conceptualization, planning and implementation of a study.

Researcher-Initiated Studies — are research activities whose conceptualization, protocol development and implementation are done by a researcher or group of individuals who may request for external funding support.

Resubmissions- the revised study proposals that are forwarded to the REC in response to the recommendations given during the initial review.

Reviewer- a regular member of the Research Ethics Committee who is assigned to assess a research protocol, the Informed Consent, and other research-related submissions based on technical and ethical criteria established by the committee.

Risks – summary of probable negative or unfavorable outcomes ranging from inconvenience, discomfort, or physical harm based on the protocol.

Room-use Restriction – the rule that limits the use of a document within the designated premises. Secret Ballot – is a system of casting votes (opinions or choices) such that the voters are not identified or are anonymous.

Scientists – are individuals whose formal education is at least a master's degree in a scientific discipline, e.g. biology, physics, social science, etc.

Serious Adverse Event (SAE) – is an event observed during the implementation of a study where the outcome is any of the following:

- Death
- Life threatening
- Hospitalization (initial or prolonged)
- Disability or permanent damage o Congenital anomaly/ birth defect
- Required intervention to prevent permanent impairment or damage (devices)
- Other serious (important medical) events whether or not it is related to the study intervention

Site Visit – is an action of the REC (based on established criteria) in which an assigned team goes to the research site or office for specific monitoring purposes.

Site Visiting Team – members/staff of the REC (2-4 members) assigned by the REC Chair to formally go to the research site, meet with the research team and evaluate compliance with the approved protocol and Informed Consent Form and Process, including other related research procedures to



EFFECTIVE DATE: August 1, 2022

REV. NO.: 4.2

PAGE: 9 of 10

#### **GLOSSARY**

ensure promotion of the rights, dignity and well-being of participants and protection of integrity of data.

Special meeting – an assembly of the Committee outside of the regular schedule of meetings for a specific purpose, usually to decide on an urgent matter like selection of officer, approval of a revised or new SOP, report of critical research problem that requires immediate action.

Sponsor- an individual, company, institution or organization which takes responsibility for the initiation, management, and financing of a clinical trial.

Sponsored Clinical Trials – are a systematic studies on pharmaceutical products in human subjects (including research participants and other volunteers), whose conceptualization, protocol development and support for their conduct are the responsibilities of sponsors who manufactured the products, in compliance with the requirements of regulatory authorities.

Standard Operating Procedures - are the step-by-step description of the different procedures done to accomplish the objective of an activity.

Status of participants – summary of what happened to (condition of) participants recruited to the study, including those that completed the study, those that dropped out, or those withdrawn for specific reasons in accordance with the protocol.

Study Documents – include all materials (protocol, forms, certificates, research tools) pertinent to a research proposal that have to be submitted to the REC for review.

Study-related Communications – documents that refer to an exchange of information or opinions regarding a study, usually between the REC and the researcher.

Study Site - physical location of where the study is being conducted, e.g., community, institutional facility.

SUSAR – Suspected Unexpected Serious Adverse Reaction – is a noxious response to a drug that is not described in the Investigator's Brochure nor in the drug insert.

SAE Subcommittee – a group of experts designated to analyze SAE/SUSAR reports and make the necessary recommendations to the REC. The experts may or may not be members of the REC.

Termination package – refers to the entitlements of study participants in the event of discontinuance of the study, which can come in the form of access to the study intervention, treatment, or information, for purposes of adherence to the principle of fairness for all concerned.

Term of office – the specified length of time that a person serves in a particular designation /role.



EFFECTIVE DATE: August 1, 2022

REV. NO.: 4.2

PAGE: 10 of 10

### **GLOSSARY**

Voting – the act of expressing opinions or making choices usually by casting ballots, spoken word or hand raising. The rule is majority wins.

Vulnerable Groups – participants or potential participants of a research study who may not have the full capacity to protect their interests and may be relatively or absolutely incapable of deciding for themselves whether or not to participate in the research. They may also be at a higher risk of being harmed or to be taken advantage.